IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

)

)

UNITED TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE, INC., and UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA,

Appellants,

vs.

Case No. 72,988

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

Julian Clarkson Michael L. Rosen HOLLAND & KNIGHT Post Office Drawer 810 Suite 600, Barnett Bank Bldg. Tallahassee, FL 32302 (904) 224-7000

and

Jerry M. Johns UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA Post Office Box 5000 Altamonte Springs, FL 32716-5000

Attorneys for Appellants

INTRODUCTION

This is an appeal from Order No. 18939 of the Public Service Commission [A 1-12], granting the application of UNITED TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE, INC. ("UTLD") for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide long distance telephone service as an interexchange carrier ("IXC"), subject to certain conditions. UTLD is a wholly-owned subsidiary of UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA ("UTF"), a local exchange telephone company certificated and regulated by the Public Service Commission. UTLD and UTF have invoked the jurisdiction conferred upon this Court by article V, section 3(b)(2) of the Florida Constitution, and sections 350.128(1) and 364.381, Florida Statutes (1987), to seek review of that portion of the order requiring UTLD to pay UTF a compensatory fee in the nature of a royalty for "intangible benefits."

Pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.220, this brief is accompanied by an Appendix, which includes a copy of the order to be reviewed. References to the Appendix are signified as [A ___]. References to other portions of the record are signified as [R ___], except that references to the transcript of the hearing conducted on September 23-24, 1987, are signified as [T ___].

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On March 18, 1987, UTLD filed an application with the Public Service Commission ("PSC") pursuant to section 364.335(1), Florida Statutes (1987), seeking a certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as an interexchange (long distance telephone) carrier ("IXC") for traffic originating in the service area of its parent, UTF [R 1-62]. UTF is a local exchange telecompany phone certificated by the PSC to provide telecommunications services to all or parts of 24 Florida counties [R 23]. UTF formed UTLD as a wholly-owned subsidiary corporation on March 16, 1987 [R 6,19] to provide an alternative long distance company to UTF's customers, to enable those customers to deal with one location for complete telephone services, and to replace revenues that will be lost as AT&T phases out the use of UTF's billing and collection services and operator services [T 14-15,47,225].

By its application, UTLD sought specific authority to operate as a reseller of interLATA MTS and WATS service to customers in UTF's service area by delivering the traffic through the facilities of another IXC, U.S. Sprint, and charging the same rates as AT&T [A 3; R 22; T 16]. It was proposed that UTLD would pay UTF the same access charges as AT&T, and would contract with UTF to receive certain services from UTF under the same terms and conditions as other IXCs, including billing and collection services, operator services, telemarketing services, direct mail services, trouble reporting service, and certain other administrative services [A 3; R 22; T 16-19,27]. Under the proposal,

-2-

UTLD would be charged directly by UTF at the same rate as other IXCs for services entirely attributable to UTLD, and the costs of services or assets shared by UTF with UTLD would be allocated pursuant to non-regulated accounting procedures ("NAP") previously approved by the PSC [R 24; T 310-15,329,343-50,389-91].

Although the PSC had previously certificated more than 90 other IXCs--including three that are also subsidiaries of local exchange companies--without substantial controversy, UTLD's application was deemed significant for several reasons [R 400-01]. The fact that UTF is a subsidiary of United Telecommunications, Inc. ("UTI"), and that another subsidiary of UTI is a fifty percent owner of U.S. Sprint, raised questions about the interrelationship of the companies [R 400]. In addition, UTLD's close affiliation with UTF, a major local exchange company, presented novel issues concerning corporate structure and cost allocations [R 401]. Consequently, the PSC set the matter for hearing on its own motion, and a number of competing IXCs, as well as Public Counsel, intervened to oppose UTLD's application.¹ [R 63-90,101,104,188-89,203,400].

After an issue identification meeting on June 18, 1987 and a Prehearing Conference on August 26, 1987, a Prehearing Order was issued on September 14, 1987, identifying fourteen distinct issues and summarizing the positions of the parties [R

-3-

¹The intervenors below, other than Public Counsel, were AT&T Communications of the Southern States, Inc.; Florida Association of Concerned Telephone Companies; MCI Telecommunications Corporation; Microtel, Inc.; Metromedia Long Distance, Inc.; and Teltec Saving Communications Company.

217-47]. One of the issues, which was included over the objection of UTLD and UTF, posed the question of whether UTLD should be required to pay UTF not only for services and tangible benefits, but also an additional compensation fee in the nature of a royalty for the use of the United Telephone name, logo, and goodwill, and for other intangible benefits allegedly received by UTLD from its association with UTF, such as access to financing and a skilled work force.

Framed as Issue 3, the royalty question was stated as follows:

Should UTLD compensate UTF and its ratepayers for services and tangible and intangible benefits (including, but not limited to, use of UTF's name, logo, goodwill, information, personnel, facilities and financial resources), if any, UTLD receives from its association with UTF and its ratepayers? If so, should this compensation be accomplished by:

- a. Accounting for UTLD's revenues and expenses above the line; or
- b. Sharing of UTLD's profits; or
- c. Some form of compensating payment(s) by UTLD to UTF? [R 228.]

The royalty issue was raised by Public Counsel, who had adopted the idea from a similar proposal made by the counterpart consumer representative office in a pending California PSC proceeding involving Pacific Bell [T 526,534-39].

The position of UTLD and UTF on the royalty issue, as set forth in their Prehearing Statement [R 170-87] and summarized in the Prehearing Order [R 228-29], was that UTF should properly

-4-

be compensated for the tangible benefits it provides to UTLD, but that no royalty should be imposed for so-called intangible benefits. UTLD and UTF urged that UTF and its ratepayers would be fully compensated for the benefits provided to UTLD by UTLD's payment of (a) premium access charges, which include a contribution to the cost of local service; (b) fees for services provided by UTF to UTLD under contractual arrangements, which revenues reduce the need for local rate increases; and (c) an assigned portion of the common costs of assets and services shared by UTF with UTLD, through PSC-approved NAP allocations. UTLD and UTF further maintained that UTLD should not be required to compensate UTF and its ratepayers for use of the United Telephone name, logo, and goodwill, because the United name and logo are not owned by UTF, but are registered service marks of UTF's parent, United Telecommunications, Inc., and because UTF's goodwill or reputation is not something that UTF's ratepayers have furnished, but rather expenditures for goodwill (such as image advertising) are required to be borne by UTF's stockholders. Finally, UTLD and UTF asserted that it would be unreasonable to allow UTF's ratepayers to share in UTLD's profits when only UTF's stockholders are bearing the risks of losses.

Public Counsel, joined by the PSC staff and several of the intervenors, took the position that UTLD should be required to pay a compensation fee or royalty to UTF for intangible benefits, because failure to compensate UTF for those benefits "gives UTLD a free competitive advantage and deprives UTF of compensation for a benefit it provided." [R 230.] Asserting that the

-5-

value of the United Telephone name, logo, reputation, and heritage "was generated as a by-product of the provision of local telephone service," Public Counsel contended that UTF and its ratepayers "should be compensated for the opportunity cost of not being able to market these things of value to others who might use them." [R 230.] Public Counsel recommended a "cost compensation fee of five percent (5%) of UTLD's total company gross revenues based on the study conducted by the California PSC staff" (actually the Public Staff Division, which is the counterpart of the Public Counsel in Florida [R 539]). [R 231.]

The matter proceeded to a public hearing before the PSC on September 23-24, 1987 [A 1; T 1-691], at which both the propriety of a royalty and the proposed formulae to be applied were the subject of extensive testimony. In support of their position that UTF and its ratepayers would be fully compensated by UTLD's payments for tangible services, and that the imposition of an additional royalty fee for intangible benefits would be improper, UTLD and UTF offered the testimony of two witnesses, Bruce H. Reynolds, the Vice-President of Operations for UTF [T 11], and Richard D. McCrae, the Vice-President of Finance for UTF [T 308].

Reynolds offered several reasons why the proposed royalty would be improper. With respect to UTLD's use of the United Telephone name and logo, he testified that because the name and logo are the property of UTF's parent, United Telecommu-

-6-

nications, Inc.,² and because neither UTF itself nor its ratepayers have ever paid for the use of that name and logo, it would be wrong to make UTLD pay UTF and its ratepayers for something they never paid for and do not own [T 24,32-33]. He further testified that "goodwill" is not something provided by customers, but is created by the performance of the company that possesses it [T 25]. Moreover, since the PSC requires the expense of goodwill or image advertising to be borne entirely by a utility's stockholders and excluded from ratemaking, the ratepayers are not entitled to be compensated for that intangible asset [T 25,33,98,200-01].

Reynolds also pointed out that UTF's assets belong to its investors, not its ratepayers, and that it is UTF's investors who bear the risk of UTLD's success or failure; thus, anv earnings of UTLD should belong to UTF's investors and should not be confiscated for the benefit of UTF's ratepayers [T 22-23]. According to Reynolds, UTF ratepayers will in fact benefit financially from UTLD's payments to UTF for contractual services, which will replace revenues lost due to the phase-out of the use by AT&T of UTF's billing and collection services and operator services [T 15], and UTLD's sharing of costs, which would otherwise be borne entirely by UTF's ratepayers [T 35]. Reynolds refuted the notion that UTLD would enjoy a financial advantage, explaining that UTLD will pay UTF the same access charges as

-7-

²It was noted that UTI has previously prosecuted litigation to protect its property right in the United name against unauthorized use [T 219-22,239].

AT&T, and will receive contractual services from UTF under the same terms and conditions as other IXCs [T 27,101-02,111-12].

Reynolds also testified that some of the costs contemplated by the royalty payment are already included in the recovery mechanisms for the NAP allocations, and thus may be duplicated costs if a royalty is imposed [T 234]. He recounted that while UTI subsidiaries had obtained authority to operate as IXCs in North Carolina, South Carolina, and Tennessee, no royalty fee was imposed in any of those other states [T 236-37].

McRae's testimony focused on the financial aspects of the relationship between UTF and UTLD. He explained that UTF's funding of UTLD was "no different than the funding of any subsidiary by a parent with the risk of loss borne by the stockholders of the parent and not by the ratepayers," and that it would have no impact on UTF's ratepayers because any investment in UTLD is excluded from UTF's regulated rate base [T 318-19]. He also confirmed that UTF's ratepayers will benefit because a portion of UTF's fixed costs will be charged to UTLD [T 314-15,322], and because the earnings from UTLD could actually lower UTF's cost of capital [T 409-10]. Finally, he reaffirmed that any work done for UTLD will be charged at the same rate as UTF charges other IXCs [T 346-47].

The principal witnesses testifying in support of the royalty fee were Billy D. Smith, a Utility Analyst with the Office of Public Counsel, and Daryl Nall, an Economic Analyst on the PSC staff. Smith took the position that a royalty fee was justified because the free use of the United Telephone name,

-8-

reputation, and heritage by UTLD, and UTLD's access to UTF's resources, constituted "a competitive advantage to UTLD." [T 521.] While admitting that UTF ratepayers do not own these intangible assets [T 525], and that UTF itself does not own the "United Telephone" name [T 532], Smith opined that UTF ratepayers "have a beneficial interest in the value of these assets" because they "paid for the valuable exposure the United Telephone name and logo has received" through the local service charges [T 525]. He also stated that he was "concerned that potential customers are being misled through the use of the United Telephone name . . . into paying extra for a non-existent benefit." [T 527-28.]

Smith recommended that a "cost compensation fee" of 5% of UTLD's gross revenues be imposed to compensate UTF and its ratepayers for the "opportunity cost" of UTLD's use of UTF's name, reputation, heritage, and other tangible and intangible assets [T 526]. He based this proposal on a report given to him by his lawyer, which was prepared by the Public Staff Division of the California PSC [T 526], the counterpart of the Office of Public Counsel in Florida [T 539].

Smith admitted, however, that he had not participated in or seen the work papers on which that report was based; that the California PSC had not yet ruled on the proposal; that he had never personally performed or directed a study of royalty payments; and that he did not verify the facts contained in the report [T 534-41]. He also conceded that the California materials involved royalty payments for services that were also

-9-

included in the NAP allocations for UTLD [T 547-48], and dealt with a franchise relationship that did not exist between UTF and UTLD [T 541-42]. At the conclusion of his testimony, the PSC sustained UTLD's objection and ruled that the California study would not be admitted into evidence [T 567-72].

In her testimony on behalf of the PSC staff, Nall rejected the recommendation of a 5% royalty as a "somewhat arbitrary" figure that "would appear to be confiscatory and . . . could even produce a loss." [T 585-86.] She agreed, however, that a compensatory fee was appropriate because of a marketing advantage to UTLD based on name recognition [T 580-81]. Based on her analysis of the experience of AT&T in 1986 [T 583], she proposed two alternative "sharing mechanisms" to compensate UTF and its ratepayers: either 8% of the difference between total revenue and access charges, or a minimum of 2% of UTLD's gross revenues plus 50% of UTLD's profit up to a maximum of 5% of gross revenues [T 592,596].

On cross-examination, however, Nall admitted that the 8% profit-sharing formula was something she "invented . . . because it seemed like it was an objective easy to audit" figure, and that the "8% could be too high or too low." [T 602-03,620-21,626]. She also conceded that application of her formula would consume about half of the net operating income of AT&T, and that she had no facts to suggest it would not consume at least that much of UTLD's earnings [T 599-600,604,615]; in her opinion, requiring UTLD to pay half its profits to UTF "would be a good amount." [T 630.] Regarding the alternative formula, she

-10-

admitted that a 2% minimum royalty could result in negative revenue [T 634].

Nall, who had conceded on deposition that she was not an expert on royalties [T - Exhibit 80E], also admitted on cross-examination that she had not analyzed how her alternative compensation mechanisms relate to the dollar benefit that UTLD will receive from UTF [T 597]. Indeed, she did not request any information on UTLD's projected operating income in an effort to determine the impact of her formulae [T 616]. Nall conceded that to place a value on the benefit to UTLD, she would "have to think about that and . . . do more of a study." She admitted using the California Public Staff study as "additional information," but did not verify any facts in that study [T 624-25]. Once again at the conclusion of her testimony, an effort to move the admission of the California study into evidence was rejected by the PSC [T 640-42].

The royalty fee was also supported by three witnesses who appeared on behalf of intervenor IXCs that are competitors of UTLD. Brian Sulmonetti of Microtel stated that UTLD's use of UTF's name will "disadvantage interexchange competitors" [T 420-21]; during his questioning, however, Commissioner Beard stated that "trying to figure out what goodwill costs" is a "problem," and Sulmonetti admitted that he was "not an expert" and "wouldn't venture to even guess." [T 453.] Mark Neptune of Teltec testified that customer confusion could occur if UTLD uses the United Telephone name and logo [T 460]; he admitted, however, that goodwill is not included in rate base accounting [T 493-94],

-11-

and that the threat of potential loss of market due to name recognition can be offset by advertising [T 511-13]. He also confirmed that application of the proposed fee of 5% of gross revenues in 1986 would have amounted to more than 13 times Teltec's entire net income before taxes [T 486-87]. Donald Evans of MCI likewise acknowledged that a 5% royalty payment would have represented 75-80% of MCI's net income in 1984, $2\frac{1}{2}$ times MCI's net income in 1985, and $3\frac{1}{2}$ times MCI's net income in 1986 [T 277-78].

Significantly, both Sulmonetti and Neptune testified that they considered structural separation of UTF and UTLD a preferable means of offsetting the alleged competitive advantage than denying UTLD the use of the United Telephone name and logo [T 451-52,498-99]. This prompted Commissioners Beard and Wilson to express surprise that two witnesses for the competing IXCs did not consider name recognition to be the most important factor in the anticipated competitive advantage [T 500-01]. Commissioner Beard also suggested that United's name recognition will impact more on AT&T than on other IXCs, which have lower rates [T 503-05].

Following the submission of posthearing briefs [R 259-367], and a PSC staff analysis recommending a royalty fee of 4% of the difference of revenues minus access charges [A 14], the PSC on March 2, 1988 entered Order No. 18939 granting UTLD a certificate of authority to provide IXC service [A 1-12]. As a condition of approving the application, however, the PSC ordered that UTLD "be required to compensate UTF for the intangible bene-

-12-

fits it receives because of its association with UTF." [A 2.] While acknowledging that "[t]he majority of the potential benefits and detriments presented by both sides are based on speculation," and that UTLD's existence would be "to the benefit of [UTF's] ratepayers" [A 5], the PSC determined that "UTLD directly benefits from UTF's established name and reputation," and concluded that "[i]t is therefore appropriate to require UTLD to pay to UTF a compensatory fee. . . ." [A 6.]

In setting the royalty, the PSC rejected the recommendations of Smith, Nall, and the PSC staff, and adopted a different formula, stating:

> We find it is in the public interest to require UTLD to compensate UTF for the many intangible benefits it receives, including, but not limited to the following: the use of the United name; the use of the United logo; reliance on the United reputation; immediate access to financing; and the ability to capitalize, through contractual arrangements, on a trained, skilled workforce.

> UTLD's relationship to UTF avoids all the start-up costs a fledgling competitor faces when it enters the long distance market. UTF is essentially a one-stop-shopping center for all of UTLD's technical, personnel, administrative, informational and financial needs. We find it unfair to allow UTLD to rely on these benefits without compensating UTF.

> Accordingly, the compensatory fee reflects our belief that these benefits were established and are being maintained by the monopoly company, UTF, at ratepayers' expense. The actual fee to be collected shall equal 2.8% of the difference between net revenues (gross revenues minus uncollectibles) and originating and terminating access charges. However, in no event shall the fee exceed, on an after tax basis, 17.5% of

> > -13-

UTLD's net operating income to be computed without the fee.

[A 10.] The order concluded with a Finding of Fact that UTLD "shall compensate [UTF] for use of the United name, logo and reputation, pursuant to the terms of this order." [A 11.]

UTLD and UTF filed a Motion For Reconsideration [R 411-31]. On July 27, 1988, the PSC entered an Order Disposing of Motion For Reconsideration, which modified Order No. 18939 in certain respects not directly affecting the royalty fee [R 466-68]. UTLD and UTF then filed a timely Notice of Administrative Appeal to seek review of Order No. 18939 insofar as it "require[s] UTLD to pay compensation in the nature of a royalty fee to UTF for intangible benefits." [R 469.]

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

That portion of the PSC's order requiring UTLD to pay a royalty to UTF and its ratepayers should be quashed. Ironically, the California proposal that served as the basis for the royalty recommendation in this case was ultimately not accepted by the California Public Utilities Commission. More recently, in denying another royalty proposal, the California Commission flatly rejected the theory adopted by the PSC below that ratepayers have a compensable interest in the name and reputation of a utility. The same rationale and result should obtain here for three reasons.

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