IN THE SUPREME COURT OF

LORIDAE D

UNITED TELEPHONE LONG DISTANCE, INC., and UNITED TELEPHONE COMPANY OF FLORIDA,

Appellants,

vs.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION,

Appellee.

JAN 11 1989
CLERK, SUPPLINE COURT
By. Deputy Clerk

Case No. 72,988

ANSWER BRIEF OF THE CITIZENS OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

Jack Shreve Public Counsel

Office of Public Counsel c/o Florida House of Representatives The Capitol Tallahassee, FL 32399-1300

(904) 488-9330

Attorney for the Citizens of the State of Florida

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

ARGUMENT

I. THE PSC'S REQUIREMENT THAT UTLD PAY A COMPENSATION FEE
TO UTF IS WITHIN THE PSC'S AUTHORITY AND SUPPORTED BY
COMPETENT SUBSTANTIAL EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD

It is well settled that the Public Service Commission's orders are clothed with a presumption of validity and the burden is on the challenging party to overcome that presumption by showing a departure from the essential requirements of law or that the order is invalid, arbitrary or unsupported by evidence. City of Tallahassee v. Mann, 411 So.2d 162 (Fla. 1981). Appellants have failed to overcome their burden of proof and have cited no facts or legal authority requiring this Court to disturb the provisions of Order No. 18393.

Although this is factually a complex case, the issue facing the Commission and now the Court is surprising simple. The PSC was presented with an application by UTF/UTLD for a certificate for UTLD to provide IXC services within the UTF franchised monopoly area. The one aspect of the application which stood out like a sore thumb was UTLD's proposal to exploit the UTF name and reputation in building an instant customer market within UTF's certificated territory. The PSC found this situation to be intolerable unless remedied in the public interest. The question became how to cratf a remedy in the context of the application process.

UTF/UTLD candidly admitted that use of the name of the local franchise monopoly was the lynchpin to the success of the UTLD

operation, and without it the venture would not likely go forward. However, the company also asserted that any value associated with the UTF name, reputation and heritage was the property of UTF's shareholders and should be used free of charge by UTLD. Furthermore, UTF/UTLD refused or failed to place a monetary value on the benefit UTLD undeniably received from its association with UTF. Thus, in order to carry out its public interest determination obligations the PSC had to place a dollar value on the benefits to which UTF's regulated operations were entitled.

In the application hearing process, the PSC undertook to determine to what extent, if any, UTF/UTLD's application should be granted and what, if any, modification in the public interest should be made. The PSC's starting point was Section 364.335(4), Fla. Stat. (1987) which states that:

The commission may grant a certificate, in whole or in part or with modifications in the public interest... or it may deny a certificate.

Clearly the Commission possessed the authority to attach conditions to UTF/UTLD's application as submitted if such modifications would serve the public interest. <u>U.S. Sprint Communications Co. v. Marks</u>, 509 So.2d 1107, 1109 (Fla. 1987); <u>Microtel, Inc. v. Florida Public Service Commission</u>, 483 So.2d 415, 418 (Fla. 1986)

It is also clear that the Commission's determination as to "modification in the public interest" applied to both UTLD and

UTF. The Commission's authority in this regard flows from Section 364.01, Fla. Stat. (1987) which states that:

The Florida Public Service Commission shall exercise over and in relation to telephone companies the powers conferred by this Chapter.

[Emphasis added]. Thus, the PSC had authority to make its public interest determination regarding any modifications to UTLD's certificate with regard to the public interest as it relates to UTF and UTF's ratepayers.

The PSC properly found that the public interest in this case involved a complex assessment of the proposed UTLD scheme on competing IXCs, UTF, UTF's local monopoly ratepayers, and UTLD's prospective ratepayers. Any specific authority necessary to protect the public interest rests squarely wintin the PSC's statutory ratemaking authority. Foremost is Section 364.14, Fla. Stat. (1987) which authorizes and obliges the PSC to make ratemaking or rate setting adjustments under certain conditions. This section provides, in part, that:

Whenever the Commission finds, upon its own motion or upon complaint, that... the... of anv telephone affecting... rates, charges, tolls, rentals, or services are <u>unjust</u>, <u>unreasonable</u>, unjustly discriminatory, unduly preferential, or in any way in violation of law,... the Commission shall determine the just and reasonable rates, tolls, or rentals to be thereafter observed and enforced and fixed the same by order hereinafter provided. In prescribing rates, the Commission shall allow a fair and reasonable return on the telephone company's honest and prudent investment in the property used and useful in the public service.

[Emphasis added]. This statute plainly and succinctly embodies the Commission's authority and obligation to recognize the effect upon rates of, respond to any "practices" of a local exchange company which affect the ratepayer's rates in an unjust, unreasonable, unjustly discriminatory, or unduly preferential, or otherwise illegal manner. This obligation could not be ignored simply because UTLD was the applicant for the certificate. Establishment of the compensating fee at this time will enable the PSC to remove any unjust costs (due to cross-subsidization) which would otherwise be embedded in UTF's rates.

Clearly, the provisions of Section 364.01, 364.14, 364.335 and 364.337, Fla. Stat. (1987), when read together authorize the imposition of a compensation fee under the circumstances before the PSC.

Once it was clear to the Commission that UTLD was exploiting the association with the local monopoly franchise, the PSC confronted the issue of whether the ratepaying public whose interest it is charged with protecting, should receive consideration for the value conferred upon UTLD. The Commission addressed this issue by determining what party provided the value embodied in the association with the LEC franchise. The PSC found that it was UTF that provided the value through the expenditure of ratepayer provided funds. This finding was amply supported in the record.

The PSC rightfully rejected as irrelevant UTF/UTLD's claim that the United name and logo associated with that name were

and/or its parent. Ownership is irrelevant so by UTF long as the value was established by, and continues maintained by ratepayer provided funds authorized and required to be collected pursuant to lawful commission orders. In a similar vein, the Commission rejected additional contentions by appellants' that image advertising or so-called "qoodwill" advertising was responsible for the benefits that UTLD proposed to receive. There was ample testimony by witnesses Smith and as UTF's own Reynolds that the ubiquitous and Nall as well pervasive historical presence of the United name and logo were a product of ratepayer funded monopoly services and not image advertising.

Consistent with its authority and regulatory obligation pursuant to Section 364.14, Fla. Stat. (1987) the Commission recognized that UTF's proposed practice of allowing UTLD to receive free of charge the valuable benefits of association with the LEC franchise would constitute a cross-subsidy provided by UTF's ratepayers. This practice of UTF could therefore cause UTF's rates and charges to be unjust, unreasonable or otherwise illegal due to the presence of the cross-subsidy. Certainly the PSC can act to prevent such an occurance. The PSC chose a compensating fee arrangement to remedy the perceived injustice. The PSC's action was well within its statutory mandate and obligation and confined to, and supported by, competent substantial evidence in the record.

Having determined that a compensating fee was due to UTF, the Commission was left with a determination of where to set the level of compensating fees. As the record demonstates, UTF failed to come forward with a monetary valuation of the benefits UTLD would receive. UTF made no affirmative effort to provide any evidence to the Commission as to the value of any compensating fee. Citizens' witness Smith and PSC staff witness Nall testified that a compensating fee should be within a range of 2%-5% of gross revenue. Witness Nall also testified to a variety of earnings based valuations. Mr. Smith also testified that his 5% recommendation was conservative and should be the minimum charged.

Faced with overwhelming evidence that the associative benefits UTLD would receive had a substantial tangible dollar value even to the extent that the UTLD venture would fail without them, the PSC could not stick it head in the sand and assess no value to the compensating fee. The PSC took a reasonable course of action and chose a number squarely within the range provided in the record.

In similar cases where the PSC was confronted with competing testimony regarding a valuation affecting customer rates, this Court has recognized that "it is the PSC's prerogative to evaluate the testimony of competing experts and accord whatever weight to the conflicting opinions it deems necessary." Gulf Power Co. v. Florida Public Service Commission, 453 So.2d 799, 805 (Fla. 1984); United Telephone Co. v. Mayo, 345 So.2d 648, 654

(Fla. 1977). In such instances the Court has declined to substitute its judgment for the PSC's own action taken within the statutory range of discretion. Citizens submit that <u>Gulf</u> controls the disposition of this case.

In Gulf the PSC was confronted with the issue of valuation of Gulf Power's coal inventory. On one hand Gulf valued the inventory at \$64,801,764 while the staff's witness valued it at \$46,812,917. The PSC stated that neither valuation method was supported by the evidence. Even so, the Commission reduced the company's valuation by \$8,994,424 or exactly half of difference between the two valuations. In upholding the PSC this Court found that although the PSC rejected both valuations, was presented with sufficient evidence to enable it to choose a reasonabe alternative. (Id.) The Gulf Court recognized that the Commission was faced with three alternatives: (1) allow Gulf's inventory without competent substantial evidence; (2) allow Gulf inventory at all; or (3) "to make some other reasonable determination." Recognizing that an inventory value of zero would not be logical, the Court agreed that valuation between the outer limits of the proposal was found to be reasonable. Gulf is indistinguishable and must control the disposition of this case.

Under the <u>Gulf</u> rationale, the PSC's establishment of a compensation fee equal to 2.8% of net revenues less originating and terminating access charges is reasonable and should not be disturbed. Certainly, the Commission's chosen compensation fee

level falls between Mr. Smith's minimum of 5% and United's figure of zero. In addition, although not a mathematical certainty, the Commission's chosen level probably also falls within the narrower range of witness Nall's minimum of 2% of gross revenues and United's zero.

One possible distinction between the instant case and Gulf is that here the PSC could well have determined that absent the compensation fee, UTLD's application would not be in the public interest. In this case, the PSC could deny the application outright. Section 364.355(4); such a finding would not have been disturbed by this Court. <u>U.S. Sprint</u>, at 1109.

II. THE COST COMPENSATION FEE CONSTITUTES A LAWFUL EXERCISE OF THE COMMISSION'S AUTHORITY AND DOES NOT PRESENT A CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUE FOR THIS COURT

regard to the constitutional issues raised, UTF/UTLD is factually in error. Appellants' misunderstand the PSC's order. The compensation fee is ordered to be paid by UTLD to UTF and not to UTF's ratepayers. Clearly then, the compensation fee will in fact benefit UTF in the form of increased revenues. This in turn means that UTF's shareholders' opportunity to profit from the UTF operations will be accordingly enhanced. Thus, far from being harmed, UTF will be benefited by the compensation fee. On these facts alone this Court should dismiss any claims Appellants might make that UTF is the victim of PSC error in any respect, much less error of a constitional nature. The Citizens' question whether UTF has any standing to raise claims of error since UTF appears to be beneficially and not adversely affected by the PSC's decision. See Fox v. Smith, 508 So.2d 1280 (3rd D.C.A. 1987).

In fact even on a consolidated basis, UTF (including its UTLD subsidiary) are kept whole by the PSC mandated compensation fee since any payments paid to UTF or credited to UTF's income statement are eliminated in consolidated accounting. The net effect, therefore, will be a wash. The debit on UTLD's financial statements and the credit on UTF's financial statements net out leaving no impact on the consolidated UTF/UTLD entity. Once again, no constitutional taking claim is available.

With respect to Appellants' claim of confiscation due to a so-called distortion of the "ratemaking equation," a simple reading of Order No. 18939 reveals that the factual underpinning for this argument is wholly absent. UTF/UTLD's argument rests on the assumption that the compensation fee will not be paid but instead will be imputed. This assumption is flatly wrong. Order No. 18939 requires that UTLD pay and UTF collect the compensation fee. Therefore, there will be no mythical or imputed revenues to skew the ratemaking equation.

The Court should likewise dismiss Appellants' argument that the PSC's determination of a 2.8% compensation fee is arbitrary. As demonstrated above, the PSC's determination of the level of the compensation fee rests squarely within the range of evidence presented to the PSC in the record. Gulf Power Company, Id.

final argument that the Commission's order runs UTF/UTLD's afoul of the constitutional guarantee of equal protection On a factual basis alone, the Commission had sorely misplaced. overwhelming and abundant evidence in the record to demonstrate that UTLD was indeed unique. The Commission has not been faced with another situation of an IXC affiliated with a major exchange company. Neither has the Commission been confronted with such IXC participating in the egual an presubscription process for the avowed purpose of building an instantaneous market share from the customer base of the monopoly On these facts alone Appellants' argument is LEC affiliate.

shown to be utterly without merit. There are no similarly situated IXCs.

CONCLUSION

The above demonstrates that the PSC's chosen method and amount of compensating UTF for valuable benefits conferred by UTF upon UTLD are justified within the statutory and constitutional framework of the PSC's regulatory powers. As such, this Court should decline to disturb the PSC's lawful exercise of discretion as being supported by competent and substantial evidence in the record. Order No. 18939 should be upheld.

Jack Shreve
Public Counsel

Charles J. Rehwinkel
Associate Public Counsel

Attorneys for the Citizens of the State of Florida

Office of Public Counsel c/o Florida House of Representatives The Capitol Tallahassee, FL 32399-1300

(904) 488-9330

Attorneys for Appellees